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December 1, 2005
To:  All Amtrak Committees
From: Jed Dodd
Re:  Union Lawsuit Against National Mediation Board
Dear Brothers and Sisters:

I would like to congratulate all of you who participated in the recent leafleting and
demonstrations protesting the lack of an agreement with Amtrak management. Along
with our brothers and sisters in the Brotherhood of Locomotive Engineers and
Trainmen, we handed out over 100,000 leaflets about our issues to Amtrak customers
and picketed Boston, Newark, Philadelphia and Washington DC train stations. We
were able to successfully get our story covered by print, radio and tv media in all four
major cities. These actions were successful because hundreds of our members, BLET
members, Teamster officials and regional labor leaders came out and supported the
Union and the struggle for a fair contract.

Unfortunately, working people in America in general, and trade unionists in
particular, live in very dark and dangerous times. Our enemy, the United States
Government, has appointed an Amtrak management that seeks to loot the publicly
financed rail passenger service to personally enrich the private campaign supporters of
the current administration. This same government appointed management has clearly
stated their intentions to destroy our pensions and health care, reduce our overall
compensation, brutalize our working conditions and contract out our jobs. In his first
communication to Amtrak workers, Acting President Hughs wrote to you and
announced he would continue to support the strategic business plan developed by
Amtrak’s Board of Directors. The strategic business plan would implement this attack
on our jobs.

While the White House appointed management is trying to destroy rail
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passenger service and our working lives, the White House appointed National
Mediation Board is ensuring that no negotiations, except the negotiations of surrender,
take place with the Union. In short, the Bush administration appoints our management
and when our management seeks to break our Union the same Bush administration
appoints mediators to help them destroy us. Due process for unionized Amtrak workers
does not exist under this Administration. Our mediators are functioning as the servants
of union busters and public looters. As a result, we have filed a lawsuit in United
States District Court to seek relief from this gross abuse of the public trust. Attached is
the complaint that was filed by the Union against the National Mediation Board.

This fight is about our survival. We have a long tough road ahead of us and our
enemies are devious and powerful. Our actions of last month must be repeated in
different forms many times over. Every member of the Union must understand that our
future as unionized workers and our ability to provide for our families is in jeopardy. On
the property you must continue to talk to your immediate management about the need
for their bosses to get to the bargaining table, abandon their demands for obscene work
rule concessions and settle the agreement. In addition, we need to continue to talk to
our politicians of both parties and persuade them to convince Amtrak to arbitrate their
dispute with us to avoid the inevitable shutdown of the railroad.

I do not know where this struggle will end. | do know that we do not intend to lay
down and agree to work under the outrageous conditions that they demand of us. In
the end all we have is our ability to stick together. The day may eventually come when
that unity will be tested in the extreme. We must continue to agitate and organize to
pressure Amtrak to settle the contract. The pressure you put in the field on the front
line management is felt in the office of the CEO.

As the rank and file leaders of the Union your jobs are very hard, but very much
appreciated, and critical to surviving this period. Hopefully, the new acting Amtrak
President will take this opportunity to make peace with the employees. Amtrak’s chief
negotiator has never come to the bargaining table. Hopefully, Mr. Hughs will see the
need to begin good faith negotiations in earnest or arbitrate the dispute and put this
conflict behind us. We are ready to meet at any place and at any time he desires to
begin negotiations. You have been there for six long years and | know that the Union
can count on you to be there for as long as it takes to get the job done.

In Solidarity,

Dot

Jed Dodd
General Chairman



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

BROTHERHOOD OF MAINTENANCE
OF WAY EMPLOYES, DIVISION, IBT
20300 Civic Center Dr. Suite 320
Southficld, MI 48076-4169

Plaintiff,
Case No.
NATIONAL MEDIATION BOARD

1301 K Street, NW
Washington, DC 20572

and

Read Van de Water, Chairman,
Harry R. Hoglander, Member,
Edward J. Fitzmaurice, Jr., Member,
in their official capacities.

1301 K Street NW

Washington, DC 20572,

Defendants.
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COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

The Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way Employes Division/IBT(“BMWED"”) bripgs this
complaint against the National Mediation Board (“NMB”), and the individual members of the
Board in their official capacities, for a declaration that the NMB has arbitrarily, unreasonably,
improperly and unlawfully failed to proffer arbitration and terminate mediation in a dispute
between BMWED and the National Railroad Passenger Corp. (“Amtrak”) over the parties’
respective proposals for changes in the BMWED-Amtrak collective bargaining agreements.
BMWED further seeks an order requiring the NMB to proffer arbitration and release the parties
from mediation.

BMWED and Amtrak have been in bargaining under the Railway Labor Act (“RLA”)



Section 6 (45 U.S.C. §156) for over six yéars, and subject to mediation under RLA Section 5 for
over five and one-half years. BMWED and Amtrak have not bargained or mediated either
directly or through the NMB for one and one-half years. BMWED has requested a pfoffer of
arbitration of the dispute and a release trom mediation puréuant to RLA Section 5, 45 U.S.C.
§155. However the NMB has failed and refused proffer and release, even though there has been
no bargaining, mediation or even discussion between the parties for over one and one-half years.
The NMB’s failure and refusal to act is in violation of the NMB's statutory obligation under RLA
Section 5 First. All that has happened is that the parties have been restrained from exercising self
help to obtain their goals without any actual concomitant process for resolving their dispute
through means other than self help.

BMWED therefore seeks a declaration that the NMB has arbitrarily, unreasonably,
improperly and unlawfully failed and refused to proffer arbitration and terminate mediation in
this dispute; and an order requiring the NMB to to proffer arbitration and release the parties from
mediation,

PARTIES

1.BMWED is an unincorporated labor association that maintains its headquarters in
Southfield, Michigan. BMWED is the representative for collective bargaining under Section 1
Sixth of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. §151 Sixth, of employees of Amtrak working in the class or craft of
maintenance of way employee.

2.The NMB is a federal agency created by Congress to administer certain provisions of

the Railway Labor Act, 45 U.S.C. §151, et seq. Its headquarters is located at 1301 K Street, NW,

Suite 250E, Washington, DC 20572. Defendant Reed Van de Water is Chairman of the NMB,



and defendants Edward J. Fitzmaurice, Jr., and Harry R. Hoglander are Members of the NMB.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction to hear BMWED’s complaint pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§
1331 and 1337 because it arises under the RLA an act of Congress regulating interstate
commerce; under 28 U.S.C. § 1361, which provides jurisdiction in this Court for an action in the
nature of mandamus against a federal agency and federal officers; and under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201
and 2202 because BMWED seeks a declaratory judgment

4. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391 (e) because the NMB
resides in this District and its members maintain their offices in this District.

STATEMENT OF THE CLAIM

5. Amtrak is a government created corporation that was organized to relieve private rail
carriers of their obligations to provide passenger service, and to assume responsibility for
provision of national intercity passenger rail service. Amtrak owns certain track, right of way and
associated shop and other facilities between Washington, D.C. and Boston, Massachusetts known
as the Northeast Corridor (“NEC”), and it operates trains and carries out necessary maintenance
of way and signal work, locomotive and passenger car maintenance, and dispatching and clerical
work associated with service on the NEC. Amtrak also operates trains on the tracks of other
railroads in other parts of the United States and it is responsible for performing certain other
work, including maiﬁtenance of way work, in connection with such operations. Amtrak is a
“carrier” within the meaning of Section 1 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. §151 First.

6. BMWED and Amtrak are parties to two collective bargaining agreements covering

Amtrak’s maintenance of way employees. By their terms, those agreements provided that neither



party could serve notices to change the agreements until November 1, 1999.

7. On November 1, 1999 BMWED served a notice on Amtrak under Section 6 of the
RLA; BMWED?’s notice advised Amtrak of BMWED’s desire to change various aspects of the
parties’ agreements.

8. BMWED and Amtrak were not able to resolve their dispute by direct bargaining
between the parties.

9. After April 7, 2000 the NMB became engaged in the dispute and began mediation
pursuant to Section 5 First of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. § 155. The NMB took jurisdiction of the
dispute and began mediation. The NMB designated mediators Les Pamalee and Fred Liefas
mediators for the dispute. Board Member Fitzmaurice also became involved in the mediation.

10. The parties’ first mediation session was held on May 12, 2000.

11. On June 12, 2000 Amtrak served a Section 6 notice on BMWED, seeking changes in
the parties’ agreements.

12. The parties met together and with mediators on June 13-14, 2000; June 27, 2000;
August 22-23, 2000; September 12-13, 2000; June 4-5, 2001; and August 27-28, 2001.

13. The parties had no direct dealings or mediated dealings in this dispute between August
28, 2001 and April 9, 2003.

14. On April 10, 2003, Amtrak advised BMWED that its proposals from 2000 and 2001
were “‘off-the table”, and that Amtrak required concessions from the Union beyond those sought
by Amtrak when they last met in 2001.

15. The parties met together and with mediators on April 10-11, 2003; May 2, 2003; and

July 2, 2003.



16. On July 8, 2003, BMWED wrote to the NMB requesting that the NMB release the
parties from mediation under RLA Section 5, and proffer arbitration under Section 7 of the RLA

17. Amtrak opposed a release from mediation and a proffer of arbitration by letter of July
22, 2003.

18. By letter of October 1, 2003, the NMB advised the parties that it would not release
them from mediation and proffer arbitration.

19. The parties had no direct dealings or mediated dealings in this dispute between July 2,
2003 and May 6, 2004.

20. The parties met together and with mediators on May 7, 2004.

21. The parties had no direct dealings or mediated dealings in this dispute between May 7,
2004 and the date of this complaint. |

22. On March 29, 2005, BMWED again wrote to the NMB requesting that it release the
parties from mediation and proffer arbitration.

23. By letter of April 11. 2005, Amtrak opposed a release from mediation and a ﬁoffﬂ of
arbitration.

24. The parties have had no direct dealings or mediated dealings in this dispute since May
7, 2004, and since BMWED’s second request for release from mediation in March of 2005.

25. As of the date of this complaint, the NMB has not scheduled any additional mediation
or other meetings or dealings between the parties in this dispute.

26. As of the date of this complaint, the NMB has not responded to BMWED’s second
request for release from mediation and for proffer of arbitration.

27.Although BMWED and Amtrak have not been released from mediation, they are not



engaged in any active mediation and have not participated in any mediation or negotiation since
May 7, 2004.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
28. BMWED repeats and realleges herein, the allegations contained in paragraphs 1
through 27 of this complaint
29. Section 6 of the RLA, 45 U.S.C. §156, provides:

Carriers and representatives of the employees shall give at least
thirty days’ written notice of an intended change in the agreements
affecting rates of pay, rules, or working conditions, and the time
and place for the beginning of conference between the
representatives of the parties interested in such intended changes
shall be agreed upon within ten days after the receipt of said notice,
and said time shall be within the thirty days provided in the notice.
In every case where such notice of intended change has been given,
or conferences are being held with reference thereto, or the services
of the Mediation Board have been requested by either party, or said
Board has proffered its services, rates of pay, rules, or working
conditions shall not be altered by the carrier until the controversy
has been finally acted upon, as required by section 155 of this titie,
by the Mediation Board, unless a period of ten days has elapsed
after termination of conferences without request for or proffer of
the services of the Mediation Board.

30. If either party to a dispute believes that efforts at resolving a Section 6 notice or
Section 6 notices through direct negotiations have been unsuccessful, it may invoke mediation
services of the NMB under RLA Section 5. Under RLA Section 5, the NMB “shall promptly put
itself in communication with the parties”, and “shall use its best efforts, by mediation, to bring
them to agreement.” If the NMB's mediation efforts "shall be unsuccessful, the said Board shall
at once endeavor as its final required action. . . to induce the parties to submit their controversy to

arbitration in accordance with the provisions of this chapter”. 45 U.S.C. §155. Thus, under



Section 5, if mediation fails, the NMB is to proffer of arbitration.

31. Arbitration proffered after failure of mediation is arbitration under RLA Section 7, 45
U.S.C. §157. Neither party is required to submit a dispute to Section 7 arbitration. If either party
refuses to arbitrate, the Board is to release the parties tfrom mediation. Under RLA Section 5 the
Board "shall at once notify both parties that its mediatory efforts have failed." After a notice of
release and proffer of arbitration, “no change shall be made in the rates of pay, rules, or working
conditions or established practices in effect prior to the time the dispute arose" for thirty days. If
arbitration is accepted, or if a Presidential Emergency Board is created under RLA Section 10, 45
U.S.C. §160, separate status quo provisions apply. Following the thirty day period after release
from mediation, if arbitration is not accepted, and no Presidential Emergency Board is created,
the parties are free to resort to economic self-help to achieve their respective bargaining
demands.

32. Although BMWED and Amtrak have been in mediation for over five years, have had
only one mediation session since July of 2003 and have had no mediation or negotiation since
May of 2004, the NMB has failed and refused to protter arbitration and release the parties from

mediation.

33. The NMB’s failure and refusal to proffer of arbitration and release the parties from
mediation is patently arbitrary and patently unreasonable, and in violation of the NMB’s
obligations under Section 5 of the RLA.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

34. BMWED repeats and realleges herein, the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 34 of this complaint

35. Section 5 of the RLA requires that if mediation is unsuccessful, the NMB “shall at



once” proffer arbitration and release the parties from mediation.

36. The NMB has held only one mediation session in the BMWED- Amtrak dispute in
over two years, and has held no mediation sessions in almost one and one-half years, and has
failed to even answer BMWED’s March 2005 second request for release from mediation.

37. By failing and refusing to proffer arbitration and release the parties from mediation
while not actually engaging in mediation, the NMB has acted patently arbitrarily, patently
unreasonably and in clear violation of RLA Section 5.

38. The NMB’s failure and refusal to proffer of arbitration and release the parties from
mediation has unlawfully and wrongfully deprived BMWED of its right to engage in self-help in
support of its efforts 1o change its agreements with Amtrak, once mediation has been
unsuccessful.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

39. BMWED repeats and realleges herein, the allegations contained in paragraphs 1
through 38 of this complaint

40. By failing and refusing to proffer arbitration and releass BMWED and Amtrak from
mediation, the individual members of the NMB have failed and refused to perform their duties
under Section 5 of the RLA

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, the BMWED respectfully requests that the Court:

A. DECLARE that the NMB has violated the requirements of Section 5 First of the RLA
by failing and refusing to proffer arbitration and release BMWED and Amtrak from meditation;

B. DECLARE that the NMB has violated the requirements of Section 5 by failing and



refusing to proffer arbitration and release BMWED and Amtrak from meditation, while not
actually conducting mediation;.

C. DECLARE that the individual members of the NMB have failed and refused to
pérform their duties under Section 5 of the RLA by failing and refusing to proffer arbitration and
release BMWED and Amtrak from mediation

D. ORDER the NMB to proffer arbitration to BMWED and Amtrak and release them -
from mediation

E. GRANT BMWED any other relief that is just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,
/sl

Richard S. Edelman
Of Counsel: D.C. Bar No. 416348
William A. Bon, Esq. O’Donnell, Schwartz & Anderson, P.C.
General Counsel 1900 L Street, N.W., #800
Brotherhood of Maintenance Washington, DC 20036
of Way Employes (202) 898-1824
20300 Civic Center Dr. Suite 320 fax (202)-429-8928

Southfield, MI 48076-4169
(248) 948-1010

Counsel for the Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way Employes Division/IBT

November 9, 2005



